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Welcome
The Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College present their twenty seventh Report and Financial
Statements.

Statement from the Chair of the Board of Management
During these challenging times, as Chair of South Lanarkshire College, I continue to be immensely proud of the
work of the College in providing our students with an excellent educational experience and securing positive
outcomes for them. The Board has been incredibly impressed by how quickly our students and staff team adapted
to online learning, teaching and working, which reflects the quality of our outstanding staff and leadership team in
guiding the College through unprecedented times.
I am also pleased that the College remains in sound financial health and we have a clear expectation that this will
continue, despite the difficult external economic climate.
The Board of Management remains committed to sound governance and is currently considering the recruitment
of new members to further strengthen our Board team.
We will continue to work effectively with our colleagues in The Lanarkshire Board to help provide a comprehensive
educational experience across Lanarkshire and beyond.
I would like to thank all of our Board Members and express on their behalf our appreciation to all of our staff in the
College and to our many partners, all of whom have contributed to our continuing success as we strive towards
our objective of being Scotland’s leading provider of education and training.
Finally, I would wish to record my appreciation to Stewart McKillop for his effective stewardship of the College
during his time in post and to welcome Aileen McKechnie to her role as Principal and Chief Executive of South
Lanarkshire College.

Andrew Kerr BA (Hons) MBA
Chair of the Board of Management
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Welcome
Statement from the Principal
I am please to have taken on the role of Principal and Chief Executive of South Lanarkshire College in March
2020 – these will, therefore, be the first set of accounts which I will sign on behalf of the College.
I am proud that the College has continued to focus on student success and institutional sustainability during 201920, despite the global pandemic. The College remains in a relatively sound financial position, despite the fact that
the current external financial environment remains challenging and the implications of COVID-19 remain unclear.
We have undertaken a range of scenario planning to support our approach to the post-COVID and post-Brexit
landscape. Given the current challenging circumstances, the unexpected impact of the global pandemic and a
lower than expected funding allocation from the Lanarkshire Regional Board, the College expects to post a slight
deficit for 2020-21.
The College is currently planning how it will manage and reduce this deficit over the period up to 2023. College
management is currently considering its approach to strategic financial management and is revising its approach
to alternative income generation, to maintain an absolute focus on finance, risk and sustainability arrangements.
During this year, we have invested £630k in campus developments. The works completed will provide improved
efficiencies in the future running of the College and will support our ambition to continue to focus on sustainability.
After constructive consultation with a wide range of internal and external stakeholders, I am delighted that we have
published our 2020-2025 Strategic Framework1, which provides an overview of our successes – we are currently
the top performing college in Scotland for overall student achievement. The Framework also outlines our ambition
to the ‘Scotland’s Leading College: delivering excellence’, and we are confident that our collective approach,
working in close partnership with our Board, our students, our staff and our stakeholders, focusing on our role in
regional social and economic recovery, will help us to achieve this ambition.

Aileen McKechnie MA (Hons.), MBA
Principal

1

https://www.south-lanarkshire-college.ac.uk/about-us/overview/strategic-plan/
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Performance Report
Overview and Operating Context
As an overview to the Performance Report, the College would highlight several pertinent points to give context.
The Scottish college sector faces significant uncertainty in the immediate and near future particularly as a result of
the impact of the current pandemic. Even without this, there was overall financial restraint in the public sector with
the challenge of delivering annual efficiency savings of 3% and an acknowledged degree of uncertainty over future
funding streams. South Lanarkshire College has been successful in increasing its core activity allocation in line
with growing demand, as per the table on page 8. However in 2020-2021 the credit allocation was reduced from
49,957 to 49,201. A reduction of 1.5% compared to the sector average reduction of 0.5 %.
In accordance with the Scottish Government policy, the College has expanded its Childcare provision and now
offers 7 HNC classes in Childhood Practice. It has also expanded its STEM provision with a particular focus on
encouraging women into Science and Construction and men into Childcare. It is on target to have 30% of courses
having no more than a 75:25 gender split by 2022.
South Lanarkshire College continues to develop its relationship with its Lanarkshire Regional partner, delivering
outcomes for students that contribute positively to the combined regional average, operates at a lower cost per
credit than its partner college and supports the development of collaborative approaches where there is potential
for mutual benefit.
The management of risk is becoming a more and more important factor. South Lanarkshire College has a wellestablished Risk Register which is reviewed regularly, both internally and by the Board of Management. A review
of the effectiveness of the Regional Strategic Body for Lanarkshire is currently being undertaken.
In preparation for a return to campus in September 2020, the College undertook scenario planning and established
a formal programme management approach to support the College’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This
was supported by the use of RAID logs (Risks, Assumptions, Issues and Dependencies), which involved every
area of the College identifying risks and mitigating actions. This allowed Heads of Faculties and Departments to
plan for continuity of service in full consideration of robust risk assessment and required mitigation. The RAID logs
were updated on a weekly basis in response to the rapidly changing COVID-19 environment and were a key basis
for decision-making about the safe re-opening of the College campus. Other useful information was provided by
the separate surveys of staff and students which had taken place in June.

Performance analysis
Strategic Planning Overview
The College published its Strategic Framework entitled “Delivering Excellence” in August 2019, one month ahead
of schedule (https://www.south-lanarkshire-college.ac.uk/about-us/overview/strategic-plan/). The development of
this Framework began in June 2018 with a Board of Management planning day, followed by student, staff and
other stakeholder consultation through November 2018 and into Spring 2019. The Strategic Framework sets out
clearly the College’s Vision, Mission, Values and Culture and will provide a reference point for the development
and delivery of future operational plans, policies, strategies and other corporate documents. It will shape how the
College delivers future education and training to develop the economy, and support Scottish Government policy
delivery through the Scottish Funding Council Regional Outcome Agreement process.
The new Strategic Framework is constructed around three strategic priorities with the College’s annual operational
planning documents linking directly to these strategic priorities. The twin purpose of organising plans around a
formal framework is to help to deliver specific outcomes for learners as well as broad outcomes as an organisation.
The three strategic priorities are:
1.
2.
3.

Successful students
Highest quality education and support
Sustainable behaviours
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
During the life of the new Strategic Framework, South Lanarkshire College aims to build on its current successes:











Record levels of student achievement. In 2018-19 the College had the highest attainment rates in
Scotland for FE and HE full time students;
A series of awards for innovation and environmental sustainability;
Meeting key targets for carbon management;
Re-accreditation at Platinum for the Investors in People Award;
Sound financial controls and continuing financial stability;
The award of Investors and Leaders in Diversity at Level 3;
Multiple student awards in national competitions;
Excellent Education Scotland report;
Award of the “Going Further for Student Carers: Recognition Award” in May 2020 from the Carers Trust;
The Student Association is proud to be working towards the LGBT Bronze Charter Mark Award;

Purposes and Activities of the College
Vision

To be Scotland’s leading college: delivering excellence.

Mission

Preparing learners well for their future in an outstanding learning environment and inclusive
community.
We are:
 Inclusive and diverse
 Passionate about our roles and responsibilities
 Continually improving
 High achieving
 Reducing our environmental impact
 Delivering community and social value
 Committed to health, safety and wellbeing
 Creative and innovative
 A listening organisation

Our Strategic Framework will support us in continuing to be a high-performing organisation that contributes actively
to meeting Scottish Government objectives as set out in their National Performance Framework.

Commercial Income and Strategic Growth
South Lanarkshire College acknowledges the operational risks associated with certain areas of its funding and
continues to concentrate efforts and resources on developing non-core business to diversify and spread the risk.
Through its Academic Board, the College reviews and updates annually its portfolio of provision with a view to
ensuring students are well prepared for the job market and that the college provides benefits to the economy in
the local and wider area.
The College has met and slightly exceeded its activity level target each year, including 2019/2020. It has done so
over a period of several years of consistent growth, demonstrating the potential unmet demand that exists in the
immediate catchment area and beyond.
The College retains Highly Trusted Sponsor status by the UK Borders Agency and has done so since June 2012.
This means the College is not limited in the numbers of overseas students it can attract. However, changes
implemented in UK legislation have reduced the demand from overseas students to very small numbers. In the
current global disruption, the College is not recruiting International students actively.
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
Regional Development
South Lanarkshire College is recognised as a high-performing college by its students, the Scottish Funding
Council, Education Scotland, employers and Investors in People. It contributes positively and significantly to the
Outcomes for the Lanarkshire Region as a whole by meeting and exceeding targets and averages for student
attainment and outcomes.
The Financial Memorandum between The Lanarkshire Board and South Lanarkshire College was finalised in
January 2016. In June 2019 the Memorandum of Understanding was jointly published that sets out clearly the
relationship between the two colleges. The two colleges in the Lanarkshire area work together across multiple
areas and deliver outcomes that are combined together in relation to funding from SFC. These outcomes are
monitored through the Regional Outcome Agreement.
The SFC initiated a review process for all Regional Strategic Bodies (RSBs) in 2019. Their report regarding the
effectiveness of the Lanarkshire RSB was published in October 2020 and the Boards of both colleges have
considered this in November 2020.

Key Issues and Risks
The key headings addressed by the College’s risk register include:













Financial stability including the loss of potential income in the short and long term;
Certainty of core funding from SFC beyond 2020;
UK exit from the EU;
Lanarkshire Region allocation of core activity and/or rate per credit;
Financial processes and controls;
Health and safety issues;
Retaining and attracting key members of staff;
Requirement for funding capital projects and ongoing maintenance;
Governance;
Regional arrangements;
Quality of learning and teaching;
Cybercrime.

South Lanarkshire College has a Risk Management Group comprising several senior members of management.
The Group has a programme of review which covers all pertinent areas of College activity, including exposure re
major income sources, employment legislation, IT support, disaster recovery and business continuity. It has
utilised the expertise of external advisors such as its insurers and, increasingly, professional experts in the areas
of business continuity planning and cyber resilience.
The COVID-19 pandemic is having a significant impact on the College and this is reflected in the Risk Register,
with the risk descriptors and scoring taking on a new, more critical dimension. The effects of the pandemic are
increasing the exposure of the College, particularly in terms of its financial sustainability and the health and safety
of its staff and students. Re the former, a specific financial risk register concentrating on finance was drawn up
by the Head of Finance and, re the latter, the College has instituted a risk assessment matrix, which is reviewed
on weekly basis by the Head of Facilities and the Depute Principal.
Additionally, the Head of Information Systems has developed a formal programme management approach to
support the College’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This was supported by the use of RAID logs as
discussed on page 5. The RAID logs feed in to the College’s main Risk Register.
The main College Risk Register is presented to all four meetings of the College’s Audit Committee and to the
Board of Management. It is also presented to meetings of the Regional Strategic Board and its Audit Committee.
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
The major risk facing the College remains the sustainability of core funding including the uncertainty surrounding
the portion of funding supported by the EU. Whilst the Scottish Funding Council has given tentative figures in
terms of activity and associated funding for the period to 2023/24 for the purposes of indicative financial planning,
the Board is very aware of the need for this situation to be monitored closely to ensure that the College is
responsive to any changes in circumstance.
The College is also very aware of the increasing threats to the integrity of its IT systems and a significant investment
of both time and financial resource is made in safeguarding these, running in tandem with the further development
of its business continuity planning arrangements.
The College’s Audit Committee agreed that it would be continuing to place particular emphasis on the review of
the College’s COVID-19 risk arrangements throughout the 2020/21 internal audit cycle.
The College benefits from receipt of European Social Funding. Until 2017/18 this funding came through the Youth
Employment Initiative (YEI). In 2019/20 the funding came through the Developing Scotland’s Workforce
programme, ring fenced for programmes at Higher National level. For South Lanarkshire College this amounts to
5,385 credits which represents 10.9% of the College’s activity. The College secured £1.537m of funding under
this programme and delivered the full activity level. It should be noted that this activity is not accompanied by an
allocation for student support.
The decision to leave the European Union will obviously affect the source of this funding. It will also affect funding
in other areas such as: income from the ERASMUS programme which funds development of staff and students;
the opportunity to apply for European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grants; and core funding currently
received re EU students who may no longer come to the UK to study. The effects of the withdrawal of EU funding
will also impact third party providers of learning and training such as the local authorities, the Construction Industry
Training Board (CITB) and Skills Development Scotland, all of whom receive EU support to fund activity that they
work with the college sector to deliver. Whilst the College can identify the direct EU funding that it receives and
assess the financial risk of its diminution or withdrawal, the actual impact on indirect funding is not so easy to
determine and the College is aware that it must be looking to develop a financial strategy that takes account of the
likely decrease in non-core funding. The sector is working with the Scottish Government and the Scottish Funding
Council to mitigate the effects of this decrease.

Funded Activity Targets
The College’s allocation of student activity in Credits from 2015/16 onwards is as follows:

Credits
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21

Original
Grant in Aid
allocation
38,478
40,978
42,088
42,947
43,816
43,816

In-year
additional
allocation
2,500
0
627
900
333
n/a

ESF /
SFC
project
allocation
5,906
5,906
5,906
5,906
5,808
5,385

Total
Activity
Target
46,884
46,884
48,621
49,753
49,957
49,201

Audited
Activity*
46,885
47,355
49,037
50,313
50,477
n/a

Over a period of continued growth and curriculum change and development, the college has always met its
credit target and delivered high attainment rates for students. It should be noted that the allocation of EU partfunded activity to the Region has been reduced for 2020/21.
*Audited activity as certified by our Internal Auditors.
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
Estates
The College’s Estates Strategy is intended to complement the overall strategic and operational plans. A synopsis
of the Strategy would be:
Acknowledging that the aesthetics of a teaching environment can have a significant positive ethos on learning
outcomes and that a comfortable environment enhances the overall learning experience, the main objectives
of the College’s Estates Strategy are:






To maintain the existing high quality environment both in functionality and look;
To consider priorities in providing and obtaining best value in relation to the estates and all its activities,
providing a safe and secure environment;
To comply with changing legislation and ensuring that sufficient management processes are in place;
To ensure a financially sound and sustainable environment aimed at providing an ever-improving
service to our stakeholders;
To acknowledge the importance of environmental issues in the way we enhance the College estate.

Measuring Performance
The College monitors a range of Key Performance Indicators to measure its outcomes and impact and presents
these to its Board. The KPIs are summarised below. A more detailed analysis of these indicators will take place
later in the year following publication of SFC data for all colleges.
 Operating a Break-even Budget
The College once again delivered on its break-even budget in 2019/20 (based on an adjusted operating surplus).
The College produces monthly cash flow forecasts both for submission to the Scottish Funding Council and for
internal review. Management place great emphasis on these cash flow forecasts to ensure that the College has
sufficient funds.
 Maintaining High Attainment Rates for Students
The College’s attainment rates have risen significantly from an already high base last year. Overall attainment has
increased by 2.7 percentage points from 79.9% to 82.6%. Further Education full time students make up around
50% of the college’s activity. Their overall attainment rate was 77.7%, an increase of 6.1 percentage points on the
previous year. Higher Education full-time students make up around 30% of the college’s activity and had an overall
attainment rate of 83.4%, an increase of 8.6 percentage points on the previous year. Part-time students on Further
Education programmes had an overall attainment rate of 84%, a decrease of 2.7 percentage points and part-time
students on Higher Education programmes had an overall attainment rate of 88.5%, an increase of 5.2 percentage
points. These attainment rates are a significant increase over the previous year, well above previous sector norms
and are amongst the best in Scotland for student achievement.
 Ensuring that Students Progress to Sustainable and Successful Positive Destinations
The most recent publication on College leaver destinations from SFC was published on 10 November 2020 for
leavers in 2018/19. Table S2.3 of the publication analyses all returns and confirms that 93.7% of South Lanarkshire
College’s students have positive destinations.
http://www.sfc.ac.uk/web/FILES/statisticalpublications_sfcst072020/College_Leaver_Destinations_201819_Full_Report.pdf
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
 Delivering a high-quality student experience
Following the requirement to move solely to off-campus delivery from March 2020, the College surveyed students
to find out how well they felt the College had dealt with the disruption. The following are the results:
Of those surveyed, 91% felt they had adequate support, guidance and resources and 89% felt their health was
adequately supported during lockdown.
 Providing Value for Money as a Public Body
Data published by the Scottish Funding Council shows that the average SFC funded in-year price per credit for
South Lanarkshire College in 2019-20 was £263.29 (http://www.sfc.ac.uk/web/FILES/outcome-agreements1920/Lanarkshire_Outcome_Agreement_2019-20.pdf). It also shows the average funding for credit delivery
across the Lanarkshire Region by the SFC was £267.28. South Lanarkshire College was therefore funded at a
rate of £3.99 per credit lower the Regional average. If the College had been funded at the regional average, it
would have equated to a further £201,351 of SFC funding. The two colleges in Lanarkshire have developed a
collaborative plan which makes a commitment to parity of funding per credit, within two years, across all elements
of funding not ring fenced by the SFC. The College therefore contributes significantly towards Regional finances
and towards operating efficiency in a Regional context. Furthermore, the outcomes delivered for students are all
well above the Scottish norm. These include high student attainment rates, high percentages going into positive
destinations and jobs and very high success rates for learners from the most disadvantaged backgrounds. In
addition, the College has always exceeded its credit target. The high levels of outputs, combined with the low price
per credit, means that the College delivers excellent value for money as a public body.
 Operating with a reduced carbon footprint and energy levels compared to our base year
The Scottish Government aims to reduce carbon emissions by setting annual targets. In 2007/08 the College set
itself a target to reduce its carbon footprint by 15% over a 10 year period. It exceeded that by a large margin. The
College now has an active strategy to promote sustainable behaviours in order to contribute positively to the
Scottish Government’s 2020 and 2050 targets on carbon reduction. The College’s new low-energy, low-carbon
building is performing better than initial modelling suggested and in the two full years of operation has had no
negative impact on the overall carbon emissions from our campus.



Scottish Government Sustainability Reporting and other environmental impacts
The College has been involved in voluntary carbon reporting since 2007 through the EAUC. In 2015, the College
participated fully in the non-mandatory framework of reporting for the Scottish Government that preceded the
2016-onwards mandatory reporting requirements. It received very positive feedback from Sustainable Scotland
Network regarding the report submitted. The College’s Sustainability Group has on their remit the requirements
to draw together the mandatory report for the Scottish Government. The College met the requirement in 2016 and
2017 to produce a mandatory carbon report and the process is already underway to produce the next report
(2017/18). The College confirms full compliance with the Scottish Sustainability reporting requirements outlined in
the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009 and presents its carbon report annually to the Scottish Government. The
report is required by 30 November each year. In the baseline year of 2008/09 the College’s carbon footprint was
1,973t eCO2. For the year 2019/20 the College’s carbon footprint was 912 teCO2. This represents a 53.8%
reduction on the baseline over a period when the College has also grown by 60%.
The active Sustainability Group has a remit to oversee various projects that promote sustainable behaviours such
as the re-usable cups project, the initiative to power down PCs when not in use, the change from plastic to paper
drinking straws and the liaison with the catering suppliers over working with Zero-Waste Scotland to reduce waste
streams and also reduce the amount of food container waste where practicable. The College’s array of 380 solar
panels, ground and air source heat pumps and arrangements for rainwater harvesting on its buildings continue to
provide environmental benefit as well as contributing towards financial efficiency.
 Social Matters
In 2017/18, the College was the first in Scotland to introduce an initiative to provide free sanitary products for all
users of the campus. This was commended by the EIS in a motion at their national conference and noted on
various BBC and SKY news channels. In 2018-19 this project was extended, with support from SFC and has
continued throughout 2019-20.
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Performance Report
Performance Analysis (continued)
Each year, in partnership with the Student Association there is a Mental Health Awareness week, Equality and
Choices event, a Health and Wellbeing event, “Green Day”, an LGBTI event and Macmillan Cancer Relief coffee
mornings.
The College maintains a strong focus on developing students as responsible citizens as well as developing their
vocational skills. Throughout the building, there is signage that encourages all users to show respect for each
other.
The College has a strong ethos on promoting equality and diversity as outlined in its Strategic Framework and
was the first in Scotland to achieve Investors in Diversity as well as “Leader in Diversity” accreditation. The College
was identified by the National Centre for Diversity as being fifth top in the UK for its approaches to promoting
equality and diversity. Our Equality Officer was awarded UK Employee of the year in January 2018. During 2018,
the College prepared for, and was accredited as, a Carer Positive employer and has continued to promote this
through policies, procedures and with the support of the new Carers Support Group.
There is a strong focus on providing support for the most disadvantaged learners, with evidence of the
effectiveness displayed through the high attainment rates achieved by these learner groups.
An extension to the social space provided in the College atrium has enabled learners to have a larger high-quality
area to meet outwith timetabled time, but this has also provided the College with greater flexibility to create
additional classroom space during the COVID-19 pandemic, whilst the forest mural on the library wall has been
well received by students in relation to it improving the quality of the study space.
The College works with its refectory providers to actively promote healthy eating; there is also an arrangement in
place for unsold food to be sold at a much-discounted price rather than being disposed of.
The College’s respective pension schemes for lecturing and support staff incorporate life assurance cover
amounting to twice the staff member’s salary. The College has purchased additional cover which increases this
to three times salary cover for those who are members of the pension scheme. Those outwith the pension scheme
are covered for one times their annual salary.
The College has an established wellbeing strategy with several initiatives designed to enhance the physical and
mental health of staff. These include a walking and running club, circuit training and access to turbo trainers; a
slimming club; mindfulness classes for staff and students; self-referral to confidential employee counselling;
discounted rates for spectacles required for VDU work; gym membership and a visiting chiropody service; plus
aerobic / dance classes and a staff choir. The College has staff discount arrangements with several local
businesses.
The College also enters a team in the annual Glasgow 10K run, with a donation going to that year’s designated
charity.
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Performance Report
Financial Performance
Financial Objectives
With the overriding aim of maintaining long term financial stability, the College’s Financial Planning Framework for
the period 2020/21 to 2022/23 was updated in June 2020 as part of the review of the College’s financial
sustainability arrangements.









To achieve long-term financial sustainability and match resources with College strategic objectives, on
an ongoing basis;
To manage short term working capital by building up month end reserves to allow consideration
of a transfer to the College Foundation;
To develop productive capacity to meet current and future learning and resource objectives
through the economic, efficient and effective deployment of resources;
To plan and control the financing of College developments and ensure finance is available to fund
capital expenditure per the College’s strategic plans;
Additional capital funding to be pursued via external grant sources;
To provide a consistent basis for evaluating strategic alternatives and developing effective
financial planning and risk management;
To be pro-active in the improvement of cash inflow from fee payers and to monitor this via
increased monitoring;
To improve profitability through, inter alia, an increased level of collection re fees.

Additionally, as part of its subsequent preparation of the Financial Forecasting Return, the College
updated its Financial Planning model for the period 2020/21 to 2024/25. This document fed into the
Financial Forecasting Return (FFR) which was submitted to the Funding Council for the 2020/21 –
2022/23 period.

Financial Performance for the Year
The following sections provide a summary of our financial performance in the year from the financial statements
which are published on pages 33 to 55.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (“SOCIE”) for the year ended 31 July 2020 shows a
deficit for the year of £661k (2019 surplus £219k) before the actuarial adjustment in respect of pension scheme
losses of £2,784k (2019 £1,332k) produced a total comprehensive loss for the year of £3.4m (2019 £1.1m). We
have no control over the pension scheme actuarial movement.
Grants received from SFC have increased from the previous year reflecting an increase in the overall average
price per credit of 3.4%.
Tuition fees are down by 2% on the prior year. This is due to some activity being deferred to 2020/21 as a direct
result of COVID-19, and also as a result of ongoing difficulties in attracting public sector funding for other contracts
in the current austere financial environment.
Other revenue grants have which have increased to £181k from £14k in 2018/19 relate to grants received by the
College in respect of the HMRC Job Retention Scheme during 2019/20.
Payroll costs have continued to increase, with the College no longer being in control of wage bargaining with this
now in the hands of a National Joint Negotiating Committee. With the increase in teaching activity, prior to COVID19 closures, our average number of employees (expressed as full time equivalents) has increased by 12 to 280.
Payroll costs (before the FRS102 pensions adjustment) have increased by £1,531k (13%) with the negotiated pay
settlement plus employer’s pension contributions and the apprentice levy all forcing costs upwards.
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Performance Report
Financial Performance (continued)
Other operating expenses have decreased from the previous year as a result of a reduction in dilapidations
expenditure in the current year, and due to COVID-19 leading to a delay in expenditure and a reduction in some
premises expenditure during the period in which the building was required to close. Consumer price inflation (CPI)
was 1.0% for the year to July 2020.
During the year, the College added £20k to Higher Education student support funds from its own resources. These
funds were required in order to ease student hardship and best support our students.
The main additions to fixed assets were in respect of the building improvements to accommodate the growing
number of students and staff and to ensure the efficient future running of the College, together with the purchase
of additional computer equipment. There were no fixed asset disposals in the year.
Debtors have decreased from last year at £1,097k with £384k of the total being ESF Youth Employment Initiative
monies which are due for disbursement by SFC in October 2020. The decrease in trade debtors is due to the
timing of payments, with £210k being received in June 2020 from a key customer. The equivalent payment was
received post year end in the prior year.
Our cash position at 31 July 2020 was higher than usual at £1,928k due to various timing differences. As noted
above, substantial trade debtors payments were received prior to the year end, thus inflating the year end bank
balance. Additionally, we were required to draw down the 2019/20 dilapidations monies in March 2020 but the
work was delayed due to COVID-19. The final payments will be made in August and September 2020 after the
works were carried out in July 2020. The College will also be repaying £351k of unspent student support funds to
SFC in October 2020. The cash held enabled us to fund the operation of the College for the first two weeks in
August 2020 until the first drawdown of SFC cash for the academic year 2020/21 was received on 14 August
2020. Following the ONS reclassification of incorporated colleges as public bodies, we are no longer permitted to
hold large cash balances. Whilst we have an overdraft facility with RBS, we did not require to use this in the year.
Creditors falling due within one year are higher than last year at £2,807k, largely due to an increase in accruals
relating to both dilapidations works and National Collective Bargaining.
The College complies with the CBI Prompt Payment Code and has a policy of paying its suppliers at the end
of the month following invoice or supply, or as otherwise agreed with the supplier concerned. All disputes and
complaints are handled as quickly as possible. Creditor payment days were 15 days as at 31 July 2020 (15
days at 31 July 2019). The College had no interest payments liable under the Late Payment of Commercial
Debts (Interest) Act 1998.
To comply with FRS102, deferred capital grants now only consist of capital grants received from Government
sources. Next year’s projected release of £752k (2019 £744k) is shown within creditors falling due within one year
with the balance of £22.6m (2019 £23m) shown within creditors falling due after one year.
The early retirement pension provision has reduced by £27k to £472k.
The College uses actuaries (Hymans Robertson LLP) to undertake an annual valuation of its share of the
Strathclyde Pension Fund liability. The valuation at 31 July 2020 increased the deficit on the College’s share of
this net pension liability from £3.383m at 31 July 2019 to £6.894m as at 31 July 2020. £2.784m of the net
movement was an actuarial loss (outwith our control) which has been reflected through the SOCIE as an increase
in our total comprehensive loss for the year.
Taking all of the above into account, the SOCIE shows a total comprehensive loss for the year of £3.4m (2019
£1.1m), which flows through to the Balance Sheet as a decrease in total reserves of £3.445m to give a reserves
total of £4.303m as at 31 July 2020 (2019 £7.748m).
In the year, the College had a positive cashflow with an increase in cash at bank and in hand of £409k (see note
19). This essentially flowed through from operations after adjusting for net depreciation of £244k and movements
in working capital.
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Performance Report
Financial Performance (continued)
Core Financial Performance Indicators
The following financial KPIs demonstrate a healthy and improving overall financial position.
Non SFC income as a % of total income
Current assets : current liabilities
Days cash
Prompt payment to suppliers
Net assets including pension provision

2019/20
18.8%
1.08:1
31
15 days
£4.3m

2018/19
18.5%
1.05:1
33
15 days
£7.7m

Financial Resource Position
The UK Office for National Statistics (ONS) reclassified all incorporated colleges as central government
entities for the purposes of accounting and budgeting with effect from 1 April 2014. This has had a direct
impact on the way in which the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) funds colleges and, in particular, the system
of paying grants. It is SFC’s responsibility to allocate both cash and resource budgets to colleges in order
to support the delivery of their Outcome Agreements. SFC now:






Distributes cash budgets on the basis of need;
Monitors the cash paid out by SFC against the overall Financial Year cash budget;
Monitors colleges’ spend and forecast outturn against approved resource budgets;
Monitors college sustainability; and
Provides information to Scottish Government and HM Treasury on the expected cash drawdown and on
spend against resource budgets for the government financial year to 31 March.

The SFC monitors colleges’ adherence to budgets via monthly cash flow returns. These returns are on a
purely cash accounting basis and therefore differ from FRS 102. The cumulative monthly cash flow returns
are also reported to the College’s Finance Committee, Board of Management and the Lanarkshire Board
on a quarterly basis.
Spend of Fixed Budget for Priorities
Following reclassification, colleges receive a non-cash budget to cover net depreciation. This additional
budget is not reflected through the SOCIE which is prepared in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. This
has been designated by SFC as the fixed budget for priorities and was spent by us as follows;

Fixed budget for priorities
Revenue priorities
Estates costs
Total priorities spend

2019/20
£000
197

2018/19
£000
197

197
197

197
197
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Performance Report
Financial Performance (continued)
Adjusted Operating Position
With the College now designated as a public benefit entity, additional disclosures are required by the
Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council. The adjusted operating position shown below
is intended to reflect the financial performance of the College after allowing for non-cash adjustments and
material distorting adjustments produced by the SORP. The adjusted operating position is therefore
designed to smooth out volatility in results arising from FRS102 and give a better indication of the College’s
cash generative capacity.

(Deficit) / Surplus from SOCIE before other gains / (losses)
Add

depreciation (net of deferred capital grant)
non-cash pension adjustment - net service cost
non-cash pension adjustment - net interest cost
non-cash pension adjustment - early retirement provision

Adjusted operating surplus

Year ended
31 July 2020
£000

Year ended
31 July 2019
£000

(661)

219

244
650
77
6

233
652
47
19

316

1,170

Going Concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Management considers that the College has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Whilst COVID-19 has impacted the overall
environment in which the College operates, the Board takes comfort from the sound financial management within
the College and the continuing ability of the College to meet its credits target. This being the case, the Board
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
The Performance Report on pages 5 to 15 was approved on behalf of the Board of Management and signed on
its behalf by:

…………………………………………………..
Aileen McKechnie – Principal
Date

……………………………………………………………
Andrew Kerr – Chair of the Board of Management
Date
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Accountability Report
The Accountability Report is split into two sections: Corporate Governance Report; and a Remuneration and Staff
Report. The College is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability Statement.

Corporate Governance Report
The Corporate Governance Report explains the composition and organisation of the College’s governance
structures and how they support the achievement of the College objectives.
The Corporate Governance Report includes a Directors’ Report, a statement of the Board of Management
responsibilities and a Governance Statement.

Directors’ Report
Statutory Background
Opened originally as the School of Building in 1948 and subsequently being renamed Cambuslang College, the
College was established under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 for the purpose of
conducting the business of the College. In March 1999, the name was changed to South Lanarkshire College
and in February 2008, the College moved to a £33 million iconic campus in East Kilbride.
The College is a registered charity (Scottish Charity Number SC021181).
Directors
The directors of South Lanarkshire College are the Board of Management whose details are set out in the
Governance statement.
Register of Interests
Board members are required to complete a declaration of interests. No significant company directorships or other
interests were held which may have conflicted with their management responsibilities (see note 25).
Disclosure of Information to Auditor
The Board members who held office at the date of approval of this report confirm that, so far as they are aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the College’s auditor is unaware; and each Board member has
taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the College’s auditor is aware of that information.
Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no important events occurring after the year-end, which fall under the definition of a post balance sheet
event.
Review of Financial Performance
A full review of financial performance has been given in the Performance Report on pages 12 to 15 of these
financial statements.
Taxation Status
The College has been entered into the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1)
of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a Charity registered in Scotland.
The College is recognised by HM Revenue and Customs as a charity for the purposes of section 505, Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and is exempt from Corporation Tax on its charitable activities. The College receives
no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.
Regional Board Expenses
The College contributes to the share of the costs of operating the Lanarkshire Regional Board. Its share of the
costs in the year ended 31 July 2020 was £35,882 (2019 £28,851).
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Accountability Report
Statement of the Board of Management’s Responsibilities
In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, the Board of Management is
responsible for the administration and management of the College’s affairs, including ensuring an effective system
of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for each financial year.
The Board of Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the College and enable it to ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Acts 1992 and 2005, the 2019
Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for Further and Higher Education, the 2019/20 Government
Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by HM Treasury and other relevant accounting standards. In addition,
the Board of Management through its designated office holder (The Principal) is required to prepare financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the College’s state of affairs and of the
surplus or deficit and cash flows for that period.
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding
Council, which brings together the provisions of the Financial Memorandum with other formal disclosures that the
Scottish Funding Council require the Board of Management to make in the financial statements and related notes.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is required to:





Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
College will continue in operation.

Financial statements of the College may be published on the College’s website in accordance with legislation in
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the College’s website is the responsibility of the
Board. The Board’s responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained
therein.
The Board of Management has taken reasonable steps to:






Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for which they have
been given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with The Lanarkshire Board and any other
conditions which the Funding Council may from time to time prescribe;
Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds
and funds from other sources;
Safeguard the assets of the College and prevent and detect fraud;
Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the College’s resources and expenditure;
Ensure sound corporate governance and proper conduct of the College’s operations.
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Accountability Report
Statement of the Board of Management’s Responsibilities (continued)
The key elements of the College’s system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the
responsibilities set out above, include the following:







Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and
administrative departments;
A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income,
expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;
Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly reviews of financial
results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast outturns;
Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment
decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review
according to approval levels set by the Board of Management;
Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the Audit
Committee and Finance Committee;
A professional Internal Audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board of Management and whose head provides the Board of Management with a report
on internal audit activity within the College and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
College’s system of internal control, including internal financial control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Governance Statement
Introduction
South Lanarkshire College is committed to exhibiting good practice in all aspects of corporate governance. This
governance statement is written to assist the reader of the financial statements understand how the principles
have been applied.
This governance statement is designed to supplement the information provided in the financial statements. It sets
out the governance structures, risk management and internal control processes that have been operating in the
College in the year to 31 July 2020 and reports the Board’s assessment of the effectiveness of these
arrangements.
The Board
The SLC Board is responsible for the exercise of all functions of South Lanarkshire College. It exercises its powers
and authorities through a Scheme of Delegation, which it determines and approves.
The Board is made up of the Principal and independent non-executive members appointed by the Board, together
with employee and student representatives who are elected by their peers. The Chairs of the respective
Committees of the Board are non-executive members. The Board sets and monitors the strategic direction of SLC
following consultation with The Lanarkshire Board, oversees College work and sets high standards of governance
and management.
The Board’s remit and responsibilities are laid out in the Constitution and Articles of Government, and the matters
specially reserved to the Board are set out in that document, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum
between the Lanarkshire Board and South Lanarkshire College dated January 2016.
The College Principal is accountable directly to the SLC Board for the proper conduct of SLC’s affairs and is also
accountable directly to the Chief Officer of The Lanarkshire Board for SLC’s proper use of funds deriving from The
Lanarkshire Board and its compliance with the requirements of the Financial Memorandum.
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Accountability Report
Governance Statement (continued)
Since the introduction of The Lanarkshire Board, funding is now allocated to the College by The
Lanarkshire Board and is subject to the condition of compliance with objectives outlined within the Regional
Outcome Agreement. To provide the College management team with assurance that SLC are maintaining
their commitment to deliver the Regional Outcome Agreement objectives, updates highlighting
performance against key targets are presented to weekly College management team meetings where
actions to address areas of potential underperformance are agreed.
When new Board members are required they are recruited via competitive interviews, focussing on their skills,
experience and other attributes which would benefit the College. A full interview process is conducted including a
meeting with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board, with the Principal and the Clerk to the Board in attendance.
On 28 February 2020, Stewart McKillop retired as Principal of the College and was succeeded by Aileen
McKechnie as of 2 March 2020. A full competitive interview process was undertaken, with arrangements being
handled by an external agency working under the direction of the Board of Management. The handover was
managed by the Chair of the Board and the Clerk to the Board, with this handover process providing appropriate
assurance to the new Principal to allow her confidence in signing the accounts which cover the full financial year.
The Board of Management who served in the year together with any post year end changes were Name
Andy Kerr

Designation
Chair

Paul Hutchinson

Vice Chair

Stewart McKillop
Aileen McKechnie
Keith Fulton
Ronnie Smith
Stuart Dillett
Chris McDowall

College Principal
College Principal

Sean Duffy
Clare Gibb

Date of Change

Retired 28 February 2020
Appointed 2 March 2020
Resigned August 2019
Appointed August 2019

Chair of Human
Resources
Committee

Resigned 26 November 2019

Gill Stillie

Resigned 7 October 2019
Chair of Audit
Committee

Patricia Donnelly
Paul Hughes
Yvonne Johnston
Jean Carratt
Rose Harkness

Lecturing staff
representative
Support staff
representative

Head of Profession, Communications
& Networks, Atkins Ltd.
College Principal & Chief Executive
College Principal & Chief Executive
Interim Chair of the Lanarkshire Board
Chair of the Lanarkshire Board
Managing Director with idverde
Partner at Anderson Strathern LLP
Chief Executive of the Wise Group
Director & Company Secretary of
McConnell Gibb Partnership

Chair of Finance
and Resources
Committee

Irene Johnstone

Lesley Glen

Occupation
CEO of Sense Scotland

Former Head of British Lung
Foundation (Scotland & Northern
Ireland)
Non-Executive Director – Scottish
Prison Services
The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland – Chief
Operating Officer
Chief Executive, The Mungo
Foundation
Head of Programmes, STV
Estates Transformation and Change
Lead, Police Scotland
Care lecturer at SLC
Head of Student Services at SLC
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Governance Statement (continued)
Name
Claire Paterson

Designation
Student President
2018-19

Date of Change
Resigned 17 September 2019

Occupation
Student at SLC

Elizabeth
Newlands

Student President
2019-20

Appointed 17 September 2019
Resigned 30 June 2020

Student at SLC

Kimberley
Dougans-Haining
Gemma
McClarence
Charlotte
McDonald

Student VicePresident 2019-20
Student President
2020-21
Student VicePresident 2020-21

Appointed 17 September 2019
Resigned 30 June 2020
Appointed 1 July 2020

Student at SLC

Appointed 1 July 2020

Student at SLC

Student at SLC

Ms. Gill Stillie served as Senior Independent Member of the Board until her resignation from that position in March
2020. On her resignation, she was succeeded by Mr Stuart Dillett. Angela Martin, an employee of the College,
serves as Clerk to the Board of Management. Other directorships of Board members may be found at
https://www.south-lanarkshire-college.ac.uk/about-us/about-the-board-of-management/board-members/
Mr Keith Fulton represented the Lanarkshire Board on the South Lanarkshire College Board of Management as
the interim Chair of the Lanarkshire Board until August 2019, when the new Chair of the Lanarkshire Board, Ronnie
Smith, was appointed.
Board Arrangements During Lockdown
The implications of social distancing and the requirement to report upon, and to deal with, the fast-changing
issues raised by the COVID-19 situation prompted an arrangement whereby the Board met on a fortnightly
basis to enable it to be updated on progress. Each of the fortnightly meetings also included a deep dive
on one of the areas normally covered by Committee meetings, which were superseded and effectively
subsumed within the fortnightly meetings. These arrangements covered the Spring and Summer cycle of
meetings, with the normal Committee / Board cycle being reinstated in September.
Board Committees
Committees of the Board generally meet four times a year, reporting to the main Board at the immediately following
Board meeting. Committees are comprised of lay members, with each also containing the Principal and the Chair
of the Board. The exception to this arrangement is that the Principal cannot be a member of the Audit Committee.
The Chair of the Board is also not permitted to be a member of the Audit Committee. A lay member of the Board
chairs all Committees. Appropriate College officers submit reports to, and attend, Committee meetings as required.
The College also has a Remuneration Committee which meets as and when required. All Committees of the
Board have written remits, referred to as Terms of Reference. A synopsis of these remits is given below.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee invites the College’s internal and external auditors to its meetings as required. The
Committee considers detailed reports together with recommendations for the improvement of the College’s
systems of internal controls and management’s responses and implementation plans. It also concerns itself with
monitoring the College’s arrangements for Risk Management. In addition, it receives and considers reports from
the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the College’s business and monitors adherence to the regulatory
requirements. Whilst the Chair of the Board and the Principal can attend meetings of the Audit Committee by
invitation, they are not members of that Committee. Additionally, membership of the Audit and Finance
Committees is mutually exclusive to ensure full objectivity in associated areas of remit. The Audit Committee for
2019/20 was comprised as follows: Ms L Glen (Chair)
Mr P Hutchinson
Ms Y Johnston
20

SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st July 2020

Accountability Report
Governance Statement (continued)
Finance and Resources Committee
The Finance and Resources Committee recommends to the Board the College’s financial statements and its
annual revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to these approved budgets. The
Committee also advises the Board on overall strategy, procurement and planning for the College’s property,
equipment and estates. The Finance and Resources Committee for 2019/20 was comprised as follows: Ms C Gibb (Chair)
Mr A Kerr
Mr S Dillett
Mr S McKillop (retired 28 February 2020)
Ms A McKechnie (appointed 2 March 2020)
Human Resources Committee
The Human Resources Committee oversees the appointment of additional members of staff and salary award
negotiations. The Committee also consider staff development and matters concerning the terms and conditions
of College staff along with monitoring Health and Safety matters across the College. The Human Resources
Committee for 2019/20 was comprised as follows: Mr C McDowall (Chair)
Ms R Harkness
Ms G Stillie (resigned 7 October 2019)
Mr S McKillop (retired 28 February 2020)
Ms A McKechnie (appointed 2 March 2020)
Development Committee
The Development Committee considers and directs the College’s marketing and commercial strategy and
oversees its continuing progression. The Committee also monitors the quality assurance processes across the
College. The Development Committee for 2019/20 was comprised as follows: Ms I Johnstone (Chair – resigned 26 November 2019)
Mr S Duffy (Chair – appointed 26 November 2019)
Ms J Carratt
Mr P Hughes
Mr S McKillop (retired 28 February 2020)
Ms A McKechnie (appointed 2 March 2020)
Ms C Paterson (resigned 17 September 2019)
Ms E Newlands (resigned 30 June 2020)
Ms K Dougans-Haining (resigned 30 June 2020)
Ms G McClarence (appointed 1 July 2020)
Ms C McDonald (appointed 1 July 2020)
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee, comprising the chairs of each Committee, sets the salaries of the senior
management team of the College and reviews nominations for Board and Committee membership. The
Remuneration Committee meets as necessary throughout the year and is chaired by the Vice-Chair of the Board.
Information on the Remuneration Committee is covered in the Remuneration and Staff Report below.
Attendance at the relevant meetings throughout the year was as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Board of Management
Audit
Finance and Resources
Human Resources
Development

72%
79%
91%
92%
82%

(2018/19: 72%)
(2018/19: 95%)
(2018/19: 84%)
(2018/19: 88%)
(2018/19: 88%)
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Governance Statement (continued)
Governance Developments in the year
The College is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of its governance. It is a condition of the Financial
Memorandum that governing bodies comply with the principles of good governance set out in the Code of Good
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges 2016 (“The Code”). This codifies the principles of good governance that exist
in colleges and promotes accountability and continuous improvement in governance.
In January 2017, Scott-Moncrieff our internal auditors, produced a report on corporate governance arrangements
at the College, focussing on the requirements of the Financial Memorandum between The Lanarkshire Board and
South Lanarkshire College. The report concluded that the College has adequate and effective controls in place to
comply with the additional corporate governance requirements documented within the Financial Memorandum.
The arrangements or requirements have not changed since then.
Due to the impact of the coronavirus and the feeling that there should be a continuity of service to ensure that the
issues and challenges raised would be followed up in the most efficient manner, it was agreed to extend the
contract of Scott-Moncrieff as internal audit providers by one year to July 2021. It should be noted that ScottMoncrieff intimated that they would be operating under the name Azets from 7th September 2020.
Our 2020-2025 Strategic Framework details our strategic mission and strategic objectives which are aligned with
the objectives of the Regional Outcome Agreement between the College and The Lanarkshire Board. The
strategic plan reflects the governance arrangements with the Regional Board.
The College has a five-year financial strategy and an updated five-year financial forecast to 2023/24 which was
approved by the Board in September 2019. The five-year financial strategy is revisited annually and incorporated
within our overall strategic plan. The figures from the approved five-year financial strategy are reflected within the
Financial Forecast Return (FFR) which is submitted annually to SFC via the Regional Board.
The College performs an annual self-assessment, outlining performance against key targets and performance
indicators within the Regional Outcome Agreement.
Board Effectiveness
The Board undertakes an annual self-evaluation exercise, and one separate session per year is devoted to
strategic planning and governance. In addition, and in accordance with the Code of Good Governance for
Scotland’s Colleges, an externally facilitated Board effectiveness review was undertaken and the report was
published in November 2017. The review involved the design and issue of a self-assessment questionnaire to all
Board Members, interviews with Board Members, facilitation of a Board effectiveness workshop, testing of the
findings emerging from the workshop and development of an action plan for improvement. This report was
distributed to The Regional Board and has been published on the College website.
https://www.south-lanarkshire-college.ac.uk/about-us/about-the-board-of-management/board-effectivenessreport/
As a result of the most recent Board strategic planning session, each Committee now produces a report on its
work throughout the year, and these reports are presented to a meeting of the full Board. This provides a selfevaluation exercise for each Committee to supplement the Board’s annual self-evaluation.
Review of Effectiveness of Internal Control and Risk Management
The systems of internal control are designed to evaluate the nature and extent of any risks and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically.
The systems are based on a framework of regular management information, administrative procedures and a
system of delegation and accountability. This includes:
 Detailed budgeting processes with an annual budget approved by the Board;
 Regular reviews by the Board and the management team of financial reports covering progress towards
financial targets;
 Annual reviews and updates to Standing Orders, Scheme of Delegation and Financial Regulations;
 Quarterly reviews of the corporate risk register.
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Governance Statement (continued)
The systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the College’s policies,
aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.
The system has been in place for the year ended 31 July 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and financial statements. The internal auditor has expressed the opinion that the Board did have adequate and
effective risk management, control and governance procedures to manage its achievement of the College’s
objectives at the time internal audit work was undertaken.
The Board of Management has responsibility for the College’s system of internal control and reviewing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control and risk management arrangements. The Board’s review of internal
control review is informed by:







The SLT within the College who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of internal
control framework;
The line management process within the College and framework of regular management information;
The work of the internal auditors, which is directed through an audit plan agreed by the Audit Committee
and focuses on identified control risk areas. The internal auditors submit regular reports on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of internal control together with recommendations for
improvement;
The College’s Audit Committee, which assesses the effectiveness of assurances in relation to the
systems of governance, risk management and internal control;
Comments made by the external auditors in their management letters.

A Regional Risk Group has a remit to identify and address strategic risks which may impact the Region, as
opposed to those that may only affect the individual Regional colleges. Management from both colleges are
members of the Group. The Group reports to the Audit Committee of the Regional Strategic Board, whilst South
Lanarkshire College’s own Audit Committee and its Risk Management Group both also receive and consider the
reports produced by the Regional Group.
Key issues and risks identified within the College’s current Risk Register are detailed within the Performance
Report at page 7 of these financial statements, along with details on how the risks are managed and mitigated.
Data Security
There were no significant lapses of data security during the year ended 31 July 2020. During the prior year, the
College was awarded Cyber Essentials Plus and was the first college in the United Kingdom to receive this
accreditation. Cyber Essentials is a Government-backed, industry-supported scheme to help organisations protect
themselves against common online threats.
Significant Issues
During the financial year to 31 July 2020 and to the date of this statement, no significant control weaknesses or
issues have arisen, and no significant failures have arisen in the expected standards for good governance, risk
management and control.
Statement of Compliance with the 2016 Code of Good Governance
The College complies with all of the principles of the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scottish Colleges, and
has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2020.
Conclusion
On the basis of the assurances provided from the sources of assurance outlined above, we can confirm that sound
systems of governance, risk management and internal control, compliant with the requirements of the 2016 Code
of Good Governance and the relevant parts of the SPFM, have operated for the year ended 31 July 2020 and up
to the date of approval of the report and financial statements.
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Remuneration and Staff Report
Introduction
The College is required to prepare and publish within its financial statements an annual Remuneration Report
under the 2019/20 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the HM Treasury.
The College takes the view that as the Principal is the only member of College staff with a strategic position
within the organisation to sit on the Board of Management, only they and any non-executive members of the
Board of Management should be the subject of the Remuneration Report. The report sets out the remuneration
and accrued pension benefits of the Chief Executive Officer (Principal) and the Chair of the Board. However, it
should be noted that the Chair does not receive a salary, nor a pension, as a result of the position with the
College; thus, there are no figures to report.
Remuneration Policy
The College has a Remuneration Committee comprising the Chair of the Board of Management and the chairs
of the committees which report to the Board. The Committee determines the salaries of all members of the
College Senior Management Team.
Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of the Principals.

Name
Stewart McKillop
Aileen McKechnie

Year ended 31 July 2020
Pension
Salary
Benefit
Total
£’000
£’000
£’000
85-90
15-20
100-105
50-55
10-15
60-65

Year ended 31 July 2019
Pension
Salary
Benefit
Total
£’000
£’000
£’000
140-145
20-25
160-165
-

Stewart McKillop retired from the College on 28 February 2020 and Aileen McKechnie took up the role as Principal
on 2 March 2020. The figures above represent the amount paid to the Principals in the 2019/20 year. The
Principals received no performance related pay, bonuses, salary paid in lieu of pension nor non-cash benefits in
either year.
Median and Range of Remuneration
The mid-point remuneration of the highest paid official in the organisation in the financial year 2019/20 was 3.0
times (2018/19 3.4 times) the median remuneration of the permanent workforce which was £41,526 (2018/19
£41,526). It should be noted that the median figure does not reflect the average salary of staff in the
organisation; the median effectively reflects the top of the lecturing scale due to the significant number of College
employees who receive this.
The College pays the Glasgow Living Wage (£9.30 per hour as of April 2020) as a minimum and thus the lowest
salary expressed as an FTE is £16,926 with the highest salary being £125,000. The College received Living
Wage Accreditation in 2016/17.
Accrued Pension Benefits
Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s Superannuation Scheme (STSS), a
defined benefit scheme, which is notionally funded and contracted out of State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
Both STSS and LGPS are defined benefit pension schemes. This means that pension benefits can be calculated
based upon on the number of years that the person has been a member of the scheme and the accrual
mechanism in each of these years. For both schemes, in the majority of cases, the benefits are based upon final
salary for all service to 31 March 2015 and career average earnings for benefits from 1 April 2015.
Further details may be found at www.spfo.org.uk and www.sppa.gov.uk.
Contribution rates are set annually for all employees and can be found in note 18 to the financial statements.
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There is no automatic entitlement to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum
up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004.
Senior Officials Pension
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The accrued pension benefits
for senior officials are set out in the table below.
Name

Accrued
pension at
pension
age at 31
July 2020

Accrued
lump sum
at pension
age at 31
July 2020

£’000
1

£’000
0

Aileen McKechnie

Real
increase in
pension
Year ended
31
July
2020
£’000
1

Real
increase in
lump sum
year ended
31
July
2020
£’000
0

CETV
at 31
July
2020

CETV
at 31
July
2019

Real
increase
in CETV

£’000
12

£’000
0

£’000
12

Mr S McKillop retired as Principal on 28 February 2020 and therefore his pension value as at 31 July 2020 is no
longer required to be disclosed. Ms A McKechnie took up post on 2 March 2020 and therefore did not have a
comparative pension value at 31 July 2019.
Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme
benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time.
The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at which the person will
first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that age;
without exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for
the effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a
consequence of their total combined Local Government and previous college service and not just their current
appointment.
In considering the accrued pension benefits figures, the following contextual information should be taken into
account:
(i)
the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions set out above and do
not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual may receive upon retirement.
(ii)
the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the employer and the
scheme member have made over a period of time.
Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the increase in accrued
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the
year.
Staff Numbers and Related Costs
Staff Numbers (Gross)
Staff
on
Permanent
contracts
Staff
on
Temporary
contracts
Male staff
Female staff

Numbers

2019/20
301

2018/19
256

Cost

2019/20
£11,913k

2018/19
£10,501k

Numbers

88

134

Cost

£1,390k

£1,271k

Numbers
Numbers

129
260

138
252
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Compensation for loss of office
No employees left under voluntary exit terms during the year and no voluntary exit payments were made.
Facility Time
In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017, the College
provided the following support through paid facility time for union officials working at the College during the year
ended 31 March 2020.
Relevant union officials
Number of employees who were relevant union
officials during the year:
3

0.45

Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage:
0%
1%-50%
51%-99%
100%

Number of employees:
0
3
0
0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time:
Total pay bill:
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time:

£21k
£13.3m
0.16%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on trade union activities as a percentage
of total paid facility time hours:

Full-time equivalent employee number

100%

Expenditure on consultancy
Expenditure on consultancy during the year was £2k (2018/19 - £2k).
Off-payroll Engagements
There were no off-payroll engagements during the year (2018/19 – nil).
Continuous improvement
The College is focused on achieving high sustainable performance through the dedication, capability and
professionalism of all staff. The aim is to support a culture of continuous improvement in people management
strategies and ultimately supporting the achievement of the College vision, mission, strategic aims and objectives.
Ongoing workforce planning enables the College to achieve high and sustainable performance by providing the
basis for better decision-making about the future needs of the organisation in terms of its people resources. The
College developed a 5-year Workforce Planning Strategy (2017/2021). The strategy demonstrates the College’s
commitment to attracting, recruiting, motivating and engaging staff that can then be supported, developed and
thereby retained to ensure that the best people deliver high quality learning to students. During 2019/20 in
response to increasing student numbers the permanent headcount within the teaching and teaching services staff
increased by 7 FTE.
Investors in People
The College achieved Investors in People recognition in 1997 and has continued to retain recognition since then.
At the assessment visit in 2010, the College achieved Gold Status and retained this in 2013. In September 2015,
Investors in People launched a new standard, which incorporated a new level of accreditation, Platinum. In May
2016, South Lanarkshire College became the first College to be awarded Platinum accreditation against the
Investors in People Standard, demonstrating the ongoing commitment to high performance through good people
management and during the previous year the College became the first to be re-evaluated at Platinum standard.
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Training and Development
The College respects and values the contribution of all staff and wants them to achieve their full potential. To
achieve this and as part of the ongoing commitment to developing staff, the College annually programmes four
days dedicated to staff development, as well as organising ongoing staff training as appropriate and hosting an
annual All Staff Conference.
We continue to offer a varied programme on staff development days which focus on learning and teaching,
equalities and developing skills. In the current year, these sessions focussed on training for online learning tools
in response to the changes which were required to the teaching environment as a result of COVID-19. We open
staff development sessions to staff at New College Lanarkshire.
In addition, there is continual staff CPD activity throughout the year and staff are encouraged to continually seek
opportunities to develop. All staff have a personal learning log that records all CPD activities undertaken.
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
The College has a clear vision and strategy to promote equality, access and inclusion. This links with all aspects
of our activity, as can be demonstrated by our strategic aim to promote equality and diversity.
As a Leader in Diversity since September 2014, we are committed to eliminating unlawful discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, to advancing equality of opportunity and to fostering good relations. This recognises
an effective, all-encompassing approach to managing equality, diversity and inclusion within the College. Working
with Investors in Diversity has enabled the College to move beyond legal compliance and towards promoting and
celebrating equality and diversity.
The College produced a new equality Mainstreaming Report 2017/21 in April 2017. The report provides an
overview of the work undertaken by the College on equality, and the legislative, economic and social changes
both locally and nationally. It demonstrates the progress made in relation to the Public Sector Equality Duty under
the Equality Act 2010 and the Equality Outcomes generated detail what the College plan to do, taking account of
the need to: 



Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
Advance equality of opportunity;
Foster good relations.

During 2017/18, the College became a Disability Confident Employer and is continuing to promote the commitment
to equality throughout the recruitment process.
The College developed a Gender Action Plan during 2016/17 to achieve the ambition set by the Scottish Funding
Council, that by 2030 no college or university will have a gender imbalance of greater than 75% of one gender.
The College has embraced Government initiatives to widen access and inclusion for all learners and is taking this
work forward through the Access and Inclusion Strategy, Equality Outcomes Action Plan and the Gender Action
Plan.
The Equality Group is chaired by the College Principal and has student and staff representation. This Group takes
its membership from across the College and meets on a regular basis to examine and consider all equality related
issues and act as a channel of communication where issues affecting staff or students can be raised and
addressed or referred to appropriate bodies for action.
We host an annual Equality & Choices Event which is run in conjunction with the Students’ Association. A wide
range of organisations attend the College, with information and activities available for students and staff.
The College is dedicated to raising awareness and improving visibility of LGBT+ people and the Students’
Association is proud to be working towards the LGBT Bronze Charter Mark Award. To date they have been
involved in lots of fun events including the College’s own Pride Stride and movie night and attending Virtual Pride.
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The LGBT Bronze Charter Mark Award helps demonstrate the positive work undertaken across the College to
ensure that our learning environment is inclusive for everyone regardless of their gender identity or sexual
orientation. The College seeks to be a community where everyone is treated with respect, fairness and
understanding.
We are committed to performing all our tasks as a caring and diverse community where any instances of
harassment and discrimination are reported and investigated.
We work closely in partnership with LGBT Youth Scotland and other support agencies to promote inclusiveness,
equality, and diversity.
During 2019/20 the College was awarded the ‘Going Further for Student Carers: Recognition Award’ by the
Carers Trust. This was an outstanding achievement and recognises the significant effort and energy which is
invested across the College to support student carers to achieve their full potential. To achieve this, the Students’
Association worked in close partnership with staff across the College to ensure that:




Student carers are being proactively identified from enrolment to completing their college course,
and awareness is being raised throughout the College all year round;
Student carers are being supported to give them a fair chance to be successful in their studies and
maintain positive health and wellbeing;
Student carer progressions are showcased, and evaluation tools are used to celebrate
achievements and make improvements to ensure that appropriate support is delivered.

South Lanarkshire College is only the second college in Scotland to have received this award which is testament
to the care and kindness we demonstrate across the College to support students.
Health and Wellbeing
The health and wellbeing of staff and students remains a strong focus for the College, with significant additional
investment in-year to support colleagues through the COVID-19 lockdown and to return to campus in a blended
way.
We continue to host our annual Health & Dignity week which is run in conjunction with the Students Association.
This is another opportunity for a wide range of organisations to attend the College with information and activities
for students and staff. Included in the event were Health MOT’s for staff carried out by HNC Care and
Administrative Practice Students and Winter Flu Vaccinations for staff amongst a variety of other activities.
We remain committed to supporting and improving the mental health of our staff and students. We provide
mindfulness classes to staff and students on a weekly basis during term time and continue to have a number of
ASIST trained staff. Our Mental Health working group meets on a regular basis to discuss any concerns raised
and ensure they are addressed. The College recognised the impact of COVID-19 on the mental health of its staff
and students, and as a result joined ‘Togetherall’, a support service that provides 24/7 mental health support from
trained professionals.
For the second year in a row, the Students’ Association and the College have worked closely to create our Student
Mental Health Agreement as part of the NUS Think Positive initiative. As one of our key policies we are committed
to supporting student mental health. We review and publish our Student Mental Health Agreement on an annual
basis to highlight the different support services available to all students within the College.
The College was proud to achieve the Investors in People Health and Wellbeing Award in 2016. During 2018/19
we continued to work closely with our catering provider to ensure healthy options are always available to staff and
students. We now provide staff with a slimming class that meets on a weekly basis and are continuing with the
running/walking group and circuits classes on a weekly basis for staff facilitated by a professional personal trainer.
Staff absence for year 2019/20 was 4.09% (2018/19 3.87%).
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Equality Policy
The South Lanarkshire College ethos statement, ‘We believe in equality and diversity’ confirms the
commitment to placing this key issue at the forefront of all the College’s work.
As a service provider and an employer, the College is committed to mainstreaming equality and aims to
constantly promote equality in its work, and to strive to prevent discrimination of any kind.
The aim is to provide fair and equal opportunities to all learners, staff, stakeholders and partners. The College
welcomes learners and staff from all backgrounds and actively seeks to promote equality and to eliminate
discrimination harassment or victimisation.
South Lanarkshire College takes full account of the protected characteristics as defined in the Equality Act
2010.
The Accountability Report on pages 16 to 29 was approved on behalf of the Board of Management and signed on
its behalf by:

…………………………………………………………
Aileen McKechnie – Principal

……………………………………………………………..
Andrew Kerr – Chair of the Board of Management

Date

Date
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College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of South Lanarkshire College for the
year ended 31 July 2020 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the
Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise the Statement of
Principal Accounting Policies, Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes in
Reserves, Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and
directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of the college's affairs as at 31
July 2020 and of its deficit for the year then ended;
•

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

•

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland)
Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2006 (as amended).

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for Scotland. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We were appointed by the Auditor General on 31 May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted
appointment is five years. We are independent of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit
services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the board. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter – Effect of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of pension fund property assets
We draw attention to Note 24 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the valuation of the College’s share of Strathclyde Pension Fund’s property assets. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report
to you where:
• the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or
•

the College has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about its ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
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Risks of material misstatement
We have reported in a separate Annual Audit Report, which is available from the Audit Scotland website, the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we identified and our conclusions thereon.
Responsibilities of the Board of Management for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Management's Responsibilities, the Board of
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Management is responsible for assessing the college's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to achieve reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The
capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the
perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of
individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved. We therefore design and perform
audit procedures which respond to the assessed risks of material misstatement due to fraud.
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.
Other information in the annual report and accounts
The Board of Management is responsible for the other information in the annual report and accounts. The other
information comprises the information other than the financial statements, the audited part of the Remuneration
and Staff Report, and our independent auditor’s report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on matters prescribed
by the Auditor General for Scotland to the extent explicitly stated later in this report.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read all the other information in the
annual report and accounts and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Report on regularity of expenditure and income
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were incurred or
applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers.
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Responsibilities for regularity
The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. We are
responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.
Report on other requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland
In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish
Funding Council.
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance
with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the
Scottish Funding Council; and
•

the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been prepared in accordance
with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the
Scottish Funding Council.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required by The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not in agreement with the
accounting records; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.; or
• there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities
In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions on the wider scope
responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in our Annual Audit Report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of
Audit Practice, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities,
or to third parties.

Lucy Nutley,
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP
Apex 2
97 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh
EH12 5HA
Date
Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000
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Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) 2015: ‘Accounting for Further and Higher Education’ and the 2018/19 Government Financial Reporting
Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (FRS
102). The College is a public benefit entity and has therefore applied the public benefit requirements of FRS102.
They conform to relevant parts of the Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM), the Accounts Direction and other
guidance issued by the Scottish Funding Council.
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the revaluation of land and
buildings.
The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards as adapted or interpreted
for the public sector context. Where the FReM is contradicted by the SORP, the SORP has taken precedence.
The particular policies adopted by the College in dealing with items that are considered material to the financial
statements are set out below.
Income recognition
Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
(SOCIE) when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers or the terms of the contract have been
satisfied.
Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure and credited to the SOCIE over the period in which students are
studying.
Investment income is credited to the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure on a receivable basis.
Funds the College receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body are excluded from the
income and expenditure of the College where the College is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic
benefit related to the transaction.
Grant Funding
Government revenue grants including Funding Council block grant are recognised in income over the periods in
which the College recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a
government grant is deferred, it is recognised as deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors
due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate.
Grants from non-government sources are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the income and
performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions
being met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the
conditions are met.
Donations and endowments
Non-exchange transactions without performance related conditions are donations and endowments. Donations
and endowments with donor imposed restrictions are recognised in income in the SOCIE at the point when the
College is entitled to the funds. They are subsequently retained within a restricted reserve until such time that
expenditure is incurred in line with such restrictions at which point the income is released to unrestricted reserves
through a reserves transfer. Donations with no restrictions are recognised in income in the SOCIE when the
College is entitled to the funds.
Investment income and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which it arises and as
either restricted or unrestricted income according to the terms of the restriction applied to the individual endowment
fund.
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There are four main types of donations and endowments identified within reserves:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Restricted donations - the donor has specified that the donation must be used for a particular objective;
Unrestricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be permanently invested
to generate an income stream for the general benefit of the College;
Restricted expendable endowments - the donor has specified a particular objective other than the
purchase or construction of tangible fixed assets, and the College has the power to use the capital;
Restricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be permanently invested
to generate an income stream to be applied to a particular objective.

Capital grants
Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset. Other capital grants
are recognised in income when the College is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions
being met.
Fixed Assets
The College’s buildings are specialised buildings and are revalued to fair value. They are revalued on a threeyear cycle unless there is evidence of a material movement in them. Buildings are depreciated over the
expected useful economic life to the College of 50 years, but land is not depreciated. Buildings erected as
specialised teaching facilities such as the College’s eco-house, are depreciated over 10 years.
Assets costing less than £10,000 are written off to revenue in the period of purchase. However, individual
assets whose costs fall below the threshold but are of a similar type are grouped.
Where assets are purchased with the aid of government capital grants, they are capitalised and depreciated
per the rates shown below. Government capital grants relating to specific capital expenditure on depreciable
assets are treated as a deferred credit and are recognised in income on a systematic basis over the expected
useful lives of the assets to which the grants relate.
A review for impairment of fixed assets is carried out at each reporting date.
Other fixed assets are carried at depreciated historical cost, which is used as a proxy for fair value. Depreciated
historical cost is deemed to be more appropriate than revaluing other assets, as it is common for such assets to
reduce in value, rather than increase, as they are utilised by the College.
Surpluses arising on the revaluation of the College’s properties are transferred to the revaluation reserve.
Additional depreciation on the revalued amount of these assets is transferred from revaluation reserve to
unrestricted reserve together with any surplus or deficit on disposal.
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset to the residual value of the asset where
appropriate. Depreciation rates used are as follows:
Land
Buildings
Furniture & Fittings
Computer Equipment
Plant & Equipment
Eco-House
Motor Vehicles

Land is not depreciated
2% per annum straight line to a residual value
25% per annum straight line
25% per annum straight line
4% and 10% per annum straight line
10% per annum straight line
33% per annum straight line
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Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Accounting for Retirement Benefits
All members of staff have the option of joining a pension scheme. The schemes currently open to members of
staff are the Scottish Teachers’ Superannuation Scheme (STSS) and the Strathclyde Pension Fund (SPF). These
schemes are defined benefit schemes which are externally funded.
Full provision has been made for those pension costs which do not arise from external defined benefit schemes.
Defined Benefit Schemes
Defined benefit schemes are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution schemes. Under defined
benefit schemes, the College’s obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former employees, and
actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more or less than expected) and investment risk (that returns on assets set aside
to fund the benefits will differ from expectations) are borne, in substance, by the College. The College should recognise
a liability for its obligations under defined benefit schemes net of plan assets. This net defined benefit liability is
measured as the estimated amount of benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods, discounted to determine its present value, less the fair value (at bid price) of scheme assets. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Where the calculation results in
a net asset, recognition of the asset is limited to the extent to which the College is able to recover the surplus either
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.
Strathclyde Pension Fund
The Strathclyde Pension Fund is a pension scheme providing benefits based on pensionable pay. The assets and
liabilities of the scheme are held separately from those of the College. Pension scheme assets are measured
using market values. Pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.
Contributions to the Scheme are determined by an actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the Age
Attained Method. Variations from regular cost are spread over the expected average remaining working lifetime
of members of the schemes, after making allowances for future withdrawals. The amount charged to the SOCIE
represents the service cost expected to arise from employee service in the current period.
Scottish Teachers’ Superannuation Scheme
The College participates in the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme pension scheme providing benefits based
on pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the College. The College is unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and
therefore, as required by FRS102, accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a result,
the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions payable to the scheme in
respect of the period.
Employment benefits
Short-term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as an expense in the
year in which the employees render service to the College. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the
additional amount the College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are repayable on demand if they
are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
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Statement of Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual
obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form.
Taxation
The College has been entered into the Scottish Charity Register and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1)
of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a Charity registered in Scotland.
The College is recognised by HM Revenue and Customs as a charity for the purposes of section 505, Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 and is exempt from Corporation Tax and Capital Gains Tax on its charitable activities.
The College receives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax.
Maintenance of Premises
The costs of maintaining College premises are charged to the SOCIE in the year in which they are incurred.
Operating Leases
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term. Any lease premiums
or incentives are spread over the lease term.
Reserves
Reserves are classified as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted endowment reserves include balances which,
through endowment to the College, are held as a permanently restricted fund which the College must hold in
perpetuity. Other restricted reserves include balances where the donor has designated a specific purpose and
therefore the College is restricted in the use of these funds.
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised in the financial statements when:
a. the College has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
b. it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
c.

a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.
A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the College.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the College a possible asset whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
College.
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
Changes in accounting policy
There were no changes in accounting policies in the year.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Income
Scottish Funding Council grants
Tuition fees and education contracts
Other income
Donations and endowments
Investment income

Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

Note

£000

£000

1
2
3
4
5

14,651
3,018
375
1

14,494
3,081
214
-

18,045

17,789

13,953
3,666
84
1,003

12,424
4,119
67
960

18,706

17,570

Total income
Expenditure
Staff costs
Other operating expenses
Interest and other finance costs
Depreciation

6
8
9
10

Total expenditure
(Deficit)/Surplus before taxation
Taxation
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year

(661)
11

219

(661)

219

Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension scheme

(2,784)

(1,332)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

(3,445)

(1,113)

(3,445)
(3,445)

(1,113)
(1,113)

Represented by:
Restricted comprehensive income for the year
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year
All items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income has been prepared under the FE/HE SORP which does not permit the inclusion of
any non-cash budget for depreciation. Note 26 shows our adjusted operating position including this depreciation budget.
The notes on pages 41 to 55 and accounting policies on pages 32 to 36 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
Income & expenditure reserve
Endowment

Restricted

Unrestricted

Revaluation
reserve

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Balance at 1st August 2018

-

-

1,981

6,880

8,861

Surplus from the income & expenditure statement
Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension scheme
Transfer between revaluation and unrestricted reserve
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

-

-

219
(1,332)
2
(1,111)

Balance at 1st August 2019

-

-

Surplus from the income & expenditure statement
Actuarial (loss) in respect of pension scheme
Transfer between revaluation and unrestricted reserve
Total comprehensive (loss) for the year

-

-

(661)
(2,784)
2
(3,443)

Balance at 31st July 2020

-

-

(2,573)

870

(2)
(2)
6,878
(2)
(2)
6,876

219
(1,332)
(1,113)
7,748
(661)
(2,784)
(3,445)
4,303
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BALANCE SHEET
As at
31st July 2020

As at
31st July 2019

Note

£000

£000

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

10

34,034

34,524

Current assets
Stocks
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

12
13
19

8
1,097
1,928
3,033

8
1,245
1,521
2,774

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

14

2,807

2,652

226

122

34,260

34,646

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities
Less: Creditors - amounts falling due after one year
Less: Provisions for liabilities

15
16

22,591
472

23,016
499

Net assets excluding pension liability
Net pension liability

18

11,197
6,894

11,131
3,383

4,303

7,748

6,876
(2,573)
-

6,878
870
-

4,303

7,748

TOTAL NET ASSETS
Reserves
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure account - unrestricted
Income and expenditure account - restricted
TOTAL RESERVES

The Financial Statements on pages 33 to 55 were approved by the Board of Management and authorised for issue on …......................., and
signed on its behalf by:
Andrew Kerr - Chair of the Board of Management

Aileen McKechnie - Principal
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

£000

£000

Net cash inflow from operating activities
(Deficit)/Surplus for the financial year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of tangible assets
Increase in creditors due within one year
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Interest payable
Amortisation of deferred capital grants
Early retirement pension payments
Interest receivable
Pension cost less contributions payable
Cash from operations
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from operating activities

(661)

219

1,003
147
148
84
(759)
(33)
(1)
650
578
578

960
244
(347)
67
(727)
(33)
652
1,035
1,035

Cash flows from investing activitiies
Interest received
Purchases of tangible fixed assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

1
(513)
(512)

(1,369)
(1,369)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Government capital grants received
Net cash flow from financing activities

(1)
342
341

(1)
1,244
1,243

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

407

909

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

1,521

612

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

1,928

1,521
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

SCOTTISH FUNDING COUNCIL GRANTS

SFC recurrent grant
SFC non recurrent grants - other
Release of government capital grants
FE and HE Childcare
Total

2.

Note 17

£000

£000

13,138
580
649
284
14,651

12,715
796
617
366
14,494

Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

£000

£000

1,331
27
866
422
372
3,018

1,182
81
983
378
457
3,081

Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

£000

£000

181
84
110
375

14
90
110
214

Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

£000

£000

-

-

OTHER INCOME

Other revenue grants
Other income
Release of ERDF deferred capital grant
Total

4.

Year ended
31st July 2019

TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

UK Higher Education students
Non EU Higher Education students
UK Further Education students
SDS contracts
Other contracts
Total

3.

Year ended
31st July 2020

Note 17

DONATIONS

Donations with restrictions
Unrestricted donations
Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements
5.

INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interest received

6.

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000

1

-

STAFF
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post holders) employed by the College during the year, expressed as
full time equivalents was;
Year ended
Year ended
31st July 2020
31st July 2019
Number
Number
Teaching departments
Teaching services
Administration and central services
Premises
Other support services
Total

142
56
47
27
8
280

141
50
42
27
8
268

Analysed as:
Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts
Total

251
29
280

237
31
268

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension expense Employer contributions
Staffing costs prior to FRS102 pensions adjustment
FRS 102 pensions adjustment
Total

10,385
958
1,960
13,303
650
13,953

9,412
896
1,464
11,772
652
12,424

Teaching departments
Teaching services
Administration and central services
Premises
Other support services

8,104
1,652
2,534
759
254
13,303
650
13,953

7,134
1,545
2,089
747
257
11,772
652
12,424

Staff costs for the above persons:

FRS 102 pensions adjustment
Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements
6.

STAFF (continued)
Indexation
Calculations on future pension increases are linked to the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
Salary award
The College has subscribed to the national collective bargaining arrangements in Scotland which cover support staff and lecturing
staff, other than those outwith the scope of the agreement. Awards were made to support staff and lecturing staff for the years
from 1st April 2019 and 1st April 2020 in line with the agreements reached by the National Joint Negotiating Committee during the
year. All awards have been accounted for in the financial year to 31st July 2020.
Ex-members of staff who receive pensions via the College's payroll received the statutory increase as per the instruction from
SPPA.
Overseas travel
The cost of overseas travel undertaken by College staff in the year was £0k (2018/19 £2k). All expenses were fully funded via the
EU's Erasmus + programme.
Analysis of Staff Costs:

Staff on permanent contracts
Staff on temporary contracts
FRS 102 pensions adjustment
Total

7.

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000

11,913
1,390
13,303
650
13,953

10,501
1,271
11,772
652
12,424

SENIOR POSTHOLDERS' EMOLUMENTS
Emoluments of the Board of Management
The members of the Board of Management, other than the Principal and staff members, did not receive any payment from the
College other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses incurred in the course of their duties.
Emoluments of the Principal
Emoluments of the postholder during the year were as follows:

Remuneration
Benefits in kind

Employer's pension contributions

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000

140
140

143
143

28

24

The above disclosure includes the salary of the previous Principal to 28 February 2020 and the current Principal from 2 March
2020. The Remuneration and Staff Report provides details for each of the post-holders during the year.
The Principal is the only employee deemed to fall under the definition of "key management personell". This is reflected in the
analysis contained within the Remuneration and Staff Report.
The Principal is an ordinary member of the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme. The College's contribution to the Scheme
is paid at the same percentage rate as for other members of academic staff.
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7.

SENIOR POSTHOLDERS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Emoluments of higher paid members of staff
The number of higher paid staff, including the Principal, who received emoluments in excess of £60,000 excluding
pension contributions but including benefits in kind were in the following ranges :
Year ended
31st July 2020
Number
£60,001 to £70,000
£70,001 to £80,000
£80,001 to £90,000
£90,001 to £100,000
£140,001 to £150,000

1
2
2
1
6

Year ended
31st July 2019
Number
1
3
1
1
6

The above figures do not include the current Principal due to Ms McKechnie taking up post on 2 March 2020. The previous
Principal, Mr McKillop, is included within a different banding from the prior year for the same reason.
Five of the 2020 employees are members of the College Senior Management Team, with the other being a manager outwith the
Senior Management Team.
Emoluments of these higher paid members of staff (excluding the current Principal) were made up as follows:
(for the academic year to 31 July)
£000
Salaries
Pensions contributions
Total emoluments

8.

485
105
590

527
92
619

Year ended
31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2019

£000

£000

781
257
920
1,235
189
284
3,666

911
161
942
1,547
192
366
4,119

£000

£000

20
14
100

20
14
100

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000
1
83
84

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000
1
66
67

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Teaching departments
Teaching support
Administration and central services
Premises
Other expenses
FE and HE Childcare
Total
Administration and central services include:
Auditors' Remuneration (including irrecoverable VAT)
- Internal audit
- External audit
Rentals under operating leases - equipment

9.

£000

INTEREST PAYABLE

Bank interest
Net charge on pension scheme liabilities
Total
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10. FIXED ASSETS
Land Buildings
£000
£000
Cost or valuation:
At 1st August 2019
Additions
At 31st July 2020

Eco- Furniture Computer
Plant &
House & Fittings Equipment Equipment
£000
£000
£000
£000

Motor
Vehicles
£000

Total
£000

1,000
1,000

34,536
227
34,763

135
135

397
22
419

1,146
183
1,329

2,415
81
2,496

40
40

39,669
513
40,182

-

2,030
727
2,757

135
135

362
18
380

658
179
837

1,920
79
1,999

40
40

5,145
1,003
6,148

At 31st July 2020

1,000

32,006

-

39

492

497

-

34,034

At 1 August 2019

1,000

32,506

-

35

488

495

-

34,524

679
254
933
67
1,000

17,725
4,164
21,889
10,117
32,006

-

5
5
34
39

336
336
156
492

289
289
208
497

-

19,034
4,418
23,452
10,582
34,034

934

25,193

-

39

492

497

-

27,155

Depreciation:
At 1st August 2019
Provided during the period
At 31st July 2020

Net Book Value

Financed by:
SFC grants
EU capital grants
Own funds
At 31st July 2020
The Net Book Values of the above assets
should they still be shown at cost would be:

Land and buildings were independently valued as at 31 July 2018 for the purposes of the financial statements by external valuers
Gerald Eve LLP, a regulated firm of Chartered Surveyors. The valuation was prepared in accordance with the requirements of RICS
Valuation - Global Standards, July 2017 edition as published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and FRS 102.
The valuation was undertaken on a fair value basis , with specialised properties valued by reference to depreciated replacement cost.

If land and buildings financed by exchequer funds are disposed of, the College may be required, under the terms of the Financial
Memorandum to surrender the proceeds to SFC.
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11.

TAXATION
The Board does not believe that the College is liable for any Corporation Tax arising out of its activities during the years ended 31st
July 2019 and 31st July 2020.

12.

STOCKS
As at
31st July 2020
£000
Stocks for resale
Other stocks
Total

13.

4
4
8

4
4
8

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
As at
31st July 2020
£000
Trade receivables
Other receivables
European funding
Prepayments and accrued income
Total

14.

As at
31st July 2019
£000

158
11
384
544
1,097

As at
31st July 2019
£000
420
11
383
431
1,245

CREDITORS - Amounts falling due within one year
As at
31st July 2020
£000
Bank overdraft
Trade payables
Other taxes and social security costs
Other payables
Deferred income - restricted
Deferred income - Government capital grants (see note 17)
Accruals
Bursaries and Access funds for future disbursement or return to SFC
Total

120
9
349
752
1,217
360
2,807

As at
31st July 2019
£000
28
250
211
385
744
985
49
2,652

SFC make non-recurrent grants to the College with restrictions on use. These are generally in respect of estates and maintenance
requirements. The College has carried forward an element of this allocation and it is shown within "Deferred income - restricted"
above and will be used for future projects.

15.

CREDITORS - Amounts falling due after one year
As at
31st July 2020
£000

As at
31st July 2019
£000

Deferred income - Government capital grants (see note 17)

22,591

23,016

Total

22,591

23,016
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16.

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES
Pensions costs arising from early retirements in prior years

At 1 August 2019
Charged to SOCIE
Expenditure during the year
At 31st July 2020

Year ended
31st July 2020
£000

Year ended
31st July 2019
£000

499
6
(33)
472

513
19
(33)
499

This provision is in respect of future pension liabilities arising from early retirals in prior years. The pension liability has been
revalued using actuarial tables supplied by SFC. The net interest rate applied was 0% (2019:0%).

17.

DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT CAPITAL GRANTS
£000
At 1st August 2019
Additional grants
Release to Income and Expenditure Account
At 31st July 2020

23,760
342
(759)
23,343

Disclosed as follows;
Amount falling due within one year
Amount falling due after one year

752
22,591
23,343

Source of Deferred Capital Grant
Sourced from SFC
ERDF Grant
Total
Analysis of Release
Funded via SFC Grants & capital contributions
Funded via ERDF Grants

19,034
4,309
23,343

Note 1
Note 3

649
110
759

Capital funding received from SFC which is used to purchase capital assets is recorded as Government Capital Grants. Grants are
then amortised at the same rate as the depreciation rate which is being applied to the relevant assets. Monies received from the
European Union (EU) in the form of European Regional Development Fund grants have been treated similarly.
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18.

PENSIONS

The two principal pension schemes for the College's staff are the Teachers' Superannuation Scheme (Scotland), "STSS", which is
operated by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency, and the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, "SPF". Both STSS and SPF are
defined benefit schemes, with STSS providing benefits for teaching staff and SPF providing benefits for other staff of the College.
For support staff, the contribution payable by the College throughout the financial year to 31 July 2020 was 19.3% of pensionable salary.
Support staff contribution rates were in a range of between 5.5% and 12.0% depending upon salary and terms and conditions of service.
The same rates were in place for the previous financial year.
For lecturing staff, the contribution payable by the College is 23% of pensionable salaries. Employee contribution rates for lecturing staff
are based upon a system of tiered contributions ranging from 7.2% to 11.9%, depending upon salary level.
The total employer pension payments for the College were:

Contributions to STSS
Contributions to SPF

year ended
31st July 2020
£000
1,418
542
1,960

year ended
31st July 2019
£000
963
502
1,465

The analysis of all amounts charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) is shown below:
year ended
31st July 2020
£000
Charged to staff costs
Current service costs
Past service costs
Total charged to staff costs
Credit/(charge) for net return on pension scheme
Interest income
Interest cost
Net interest charged
(Credit)/charge to other comprehensive income
Return on assets
Changes in demographic assumptions
Other experience
Gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial loss/(gain)
Total charge/(credit) to the SOCI

2,613
2,613

year ended
31st July 2019
£000
1,876
238
2,114

(305)
388
83

(366)
432
66

650
(80)
2,214
2,784
5,480

(633)
(715)
2,680
1,332
3,512

Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme
South Lanarkshire College participates in the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded statutory public
service pension scheme with benefits underwritten by the UK Government. The scheme is financed by payments from employers and
from those current employees who are members of the scheme and paying contributions at progressively higher marginal rates based
on pensionable pay, as specified in the regulations. The rate of employer contributions is set with reference to a funding valuation
undertaken by the scheme actuary. The last four-yearly valuation has recently concluded and was based on data as at 31 March 2016
and has set contribution rates from 1 September 2019 to 31 March 2023. The next revision to the employer rate is expected to take
effect from 1 April 2023.
The College has no liability for other employers obligations to the multi-employer scheme.
As the scheme is unfunded there can be no deficit or surplus to distribute on the wind-up of the scheme or withdrawal from the scheme.
The scheme is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The scheme has been treated for accounting purposes as a defined
contribution scheme as the College is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.
The employer contribution rate was set at 23% of pensionable pay from 1 September 2019; it was previously 17.2%. While the
employee rate applied is a variable, it will provide an actuarial yield of 9.6% of pensionable pay.
At the last valuation a shortfall of £1.3 billion was identified in the notional fund which will be repaid by a supplementary rate of 4.3% of
employers pension contributions for fifteen years from 1 April 2019, although the increase was not implemented until 1 September 2019.
This contribution is included in the 23% employers’ contribution rate.
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18.

PENSIONS (continued)
The total employer contributions received for the Scottish Teachers' scheme in the year to 31 March 2014 were £346.3 million. South
Lanarkshire College level of participation in the scheme is 0.2% based on the proportion of employer contributions paid in 2013/14. This
is the latest such information we have on the scheme.
Local Government Superannuation Scheme
The College participates in the Strathclyde Pension Fund, which is a funded defined benefit pension scheme where contributions
payable are held in a trust separately from the College.
The main results and assumptions of the most recent valuation of the Strathclyde Pension Fund are as follows:
Valuation date
Valuation method
Market value of the assets at the date of the last formal valuation
Past service liabilities
Surplus
Funding level

31st March 2017
Projected Unit Method
£19,699 million
£18,761 million
£939 million
105%
Funding basis
(% pa)

Discount rate: post-retirement
Discount rate: pre-retirement
Salary scale increases per annum
Benefit increase assumption (CPI)

3.30%
3.70%
3.60%
2.40%

An actuarial valuation of the Fund is carried out every three years.
Disclosures under FRS 102 of Defined Benefit Scheme
The following disclosures are required under FRS 102.
The valuation was updated by the actuary on an FRS 102 basis as at 31st July 2020 and 31 July 2019.
and the major assumptions used in the valuation and the updates were:
Update at
Update at
31 July 2020 31 July 2019
Inflation / pension increase rate
2.2%
2.4%
Salary increases
3.2%
3.6%
Discount rate
1.4%
2.1%
The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due to the
timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.
Mortality
Life expectancy is based upon the Fund's VitaCurves specifically tailored to the membership profile of the Fund. Improvements have
been applied that are in line with the CMI 2018 model assuming the rate of longevity improvements have reached a peak and will
converge to a long term rate of 1.5% per annum for males and 1.25% for females. The assumed life expectancies at age 65 are shown
below.

Current pensioners
Future pensioners

Male
20.7
22.2

Female
22.9
24.6

Liabilities are valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method which assesses the future liabilities of the fund discounted to
their present value. The valuations at 31 July 2020 have been prepared by Hymans Robertson LLP.
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18.

PENSIONS (continued)
The movement in the funded part of the net pension liability for the year ended 31 July 2020 was as follows:

Fair value of employer assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position as at 1 August 2019
Current service cost
Past service cost (including curtailments)
Total service cost
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in SOCIE
Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Total cash flows
Expected closing position
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest
Total remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 July 2020

Information about the defined benefit obligation
Active members
Deferred members
Pensioner members
Total

Year ended 31 July 2020
Net (Liability)/
Assets
Obligations
Asset
£000
£000
£000
14,280
14,280
(17,663)
(17,663)
14,280
(17,663)
(3,383)
(1,195)
(1,195)
0
0
(1,195)
(1,195)
305
305
(382)
(382)
305
(382)
(77)
305
(1,577)
(1,272)
166
(166)
545
545
(260)
260
451
94
545
15,036
(19,146)
(4,110)
(2,214)
(2,214)
80
80
(650)
(650)
(650)
(2,134)
(2,784)
14,386
14,386
(21,280)
(21,280)
14,386
(21,280)
(6,894)

Liability split at 31 July 2020 Weighted average duration
£000
% at last formal valuation *
15,857
74.5%
24.4
2,659
12.5%
25.6
2,764
13.0%
11.7
21,280
100.0%
21.7

* as at 31 March 2017
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PENSIONS (continued)
The movement in the funded part of the net pension liability for the year ended 31 July 2019 was as follows:

Fair value of employer assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Opening position as at 1 August 2018
Current service cost
Past service cost
Total service cost
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Total net interest
Total defined benefit cost recognised in SOCIE
Employee contributions
Employer contributions
Benefits paid
Total cash flows
Expected closing position
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience
Return on assets excluding amounts included in net interest
Total remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Fair value of employer assets
Present value of funded liabilities
Closing position as at 31 July 2019

Year ended 31 July 2019
Net (Liability)/
Assets
Obligations
Asset
£000
£000
£000
12,875
12,875
(14,227)
(14,227)
12,875
(14,227)
(1,352)
(913)
(913)
(238)
(238)
(1,151)
(1,151)
366
366
(413)
(413)
366
(413)
(47)
366
(1,564)
(1,198)
152
(152)
499
499
(245)
245
406
93
499
13,647
(15,698)
(2,051)
(715)
(715)
2,680
2,680
633
633
633
1,965
2,598
14,280
14,280
(17,663)
(17,663)
14,280
(17,663)
(3,383)

Projected defined benefit cost for the year to 31 July 2021

Projected current service cost
Interest income on plan assets
Interest cost on defined benefit obligations
Total included in SOCIE

Assets
£000
204
204

Obligations
£000
(1,403)
(307)
(1,710)

£000
(1,403)
204
(307)
(1,506)

The valuation estimates that the Employer's contribution for the year to 31 July 2021 will be approx. £545,000.

Net (liability)/asset
% of pay
(49.7%)
7.2%
(10.9%)
(53.4%)
.

The above figures should be treated as estimates and may need to be adjusted to take account of:
* any material events such as curtailments, settlements or the employers discontinuance of the employers participation in the Fund;
* any changes to accounting practices;
* any changes to the Scheme benefit or member contribution rates; and/or
* any full funding valuation that may be carried out on the employers behalf.
The monetary amount of the projected service cost for the year to 31 July 2021 may be adjusted to take account of actual
pensionable payroll for the year.
Sensititivity analysis
The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:
Change in assumptions at 31 July 2020

Approximate % increase to
Employer Liability

Approximate monetary impact
(£000)

0.5% decrease in real discount rate
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate
0.5% increase in pension increase rate

13%
2%
11%

2,685
366
2,254
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PENSIONS (continued)
McCloud ruling
When the LGPS Scotland benefit structure was reformed in 2015, transitional protections were applied to certain older members close to
normal retirement age. The benefits accrued from 1 April 2015 by these members are subject to an 'underpin' which means that they
cannot be lower than what they would have received under the previous benefit structure. The underpin ensures that these members do
not lose out from the introduction of the new scheme.
In December 2018 the Court of Appeal upheld a ruling ("McCloud/Sargeant") that similar transitional protections in the Judges' and
Firefighters' Pension Schemes were unlawful on the grounds of age discrimination. The implications of the ruling are expected to apply
to the LGPS (and other public service schemes) as well. The UK Government requested leave to appeal to the Supreme Court but this
was denied at the end of June 2019. Therefore, LGPS Scotland benefits accrued from 2015 may need to be enhanced so that all eligible
members, regardless of age, will benefit from the underpin. Alternatively, restitution may be achieved in a different way, for example by
paying compensation. In either case, the clear expectation is that many more members would see an enhanced benefit rather than just
those currently subject to these protections.
Quantifying the impact of the judgement at this stage is very difficult because it will depend on the compensation awarded, members’
future salary increases, length of service and retirement age, and whether (and when) members withdraw from active service. Salary
increases in particular can vary significantly from year to year and from member to member depending on factors such as budget
restraint, job performance and career progression. The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) has estimated that the impact for the
LGPS England & Wales as a whole could be to increase active member liabilities by 3.2%, based on a given set of actuarial
assumptions. A full description of the data, methodology and assumptions underlying these estimates is given in GAD’s paper, dated 10
June 2019.
In the prior year, the Strathclyde Pension Fund’s actuary adjusted GAD’s estimate to better reflect local assumptions and circumstances,
particularly those for employer level salary increases and Fund level withdrawal rates. The revised estimate resulted in an increase to
the liabilities (shown as a past service cost of £227,000 within the 31 July 2019 disclosures). No further adjustment was made for the
McCloud ruling in the 31 July 2020 disclosures.
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)
Guaranteed minimum pension (GMP) was accrued by members of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) between 6 April
1978 and 5 April 1997. The value of GMP is inherently unequal between males and females for a number of reasons, including a higher
retirement age for men and GMP accruing at a faster rate for women. However, overall equality of benefits was achieved for public
service schemes through the interaction between scheme pensions and the Second State Pension. The introduction of the new Single
State Pension in April 2016 disrupted this arrangement and brought uncertainty over the ongoing indexation of GMPs, which could lead
to inequalities between men's and women's benefits.
As an interim solution to avoid this problem, GMP rules were changed so that the responsibility for ensuring GMPs kept pace with
inflation passed in full to pension schemes themselves for members reaching state pension age between 6 April 2016 and 5 April 2021.
This new responsibility leads to increased costs for schemes (including the LGPS) and hence scheme employers.
The Fund's actuary has carried out calculations in order to estimate the impact that the GMP indexation changes will have on the
pension fund liabilities. The estimate assumes that the permanent solution eventually agreed will be equivalent in cost to extending the
interim solution to all members reaching state pension age from 6 April 2016 onwards.
The estimated impact of GMP indexation was included in the prior year as an £11,000 increase to the past service cost and we continue
to carry this element within our balance sheet in the year to 31 July 2020.
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19.

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET FUNDS
At 1st August
2019
£000
Cash in hand and at bank
Bank overdraft
Total

20.

Cash
Flows
£000

1,521
1,521

407
407

Other
Changes
£000
-

At 31st July
2020
£000
1,928
1,928

LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Total rentals payable for equipment under operating leases
year ended
31 July 2020
£000
Future minimum lease payments due
Within one year
Between 1 and 5 years

21.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no capital commitments at the year end or at the prior year end.

22.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no contingent liabilities at the year end or at the prior year end.

23.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no items occurring after the year end which require disclosure.

24.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

37
4
41

year ended
31 July 2019
£000
78
37
115

With the College accounting reference date reflecting the end of the academic year, there are very few estimates and judgements
impacting upon the financial statements. There is very little teaching activity spanning the year end and the College is not involved
in research activity. Funding from SFC is normally in respect of the academic year to 31 July. Stock is estimated at a nominal figure
of £8k with all academic purchasing being held back until August and the start of the new academic year. A small provision for bad
debts is adjusted annually based upon the profile of the relevant debtors.
The College participates in the Strathclyde Pension Fund (SPF). SPF's property portfolio valuation as at 31 March 2020 includes a
'material valuation uncertainty' clause. The response to COVID-19 meant that property valuers were faced with an unprecedented
set of circumstances on which to base a judgement. As at the valuation date, they considered that less weight could be attached to
previous market evidence for comparison purposes to inform opinions of value. Their valuations are therefore reported on the basis
of 'material valuation uncertainty' as per the "RICS Valuation - Global Standards effective from 31 January 2020". Consequently,
less certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be attached to their valuation than would normally be the case. For the
avoidance of doubt, this does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon. Rather, the material uncertainty clause is used to
be clear and transparent with all parties that, in the current extraordinary circumstances, less certainty can be attached to the
valuation than would otherwise be the case. The College estimates that its share of pension fund assets that are subject to a
'material valuation uncertainty' could be material to the financial statements.
The quantification of the final salary pension scheme also involves assumptions and judgements as detailed in note 18. We take
guidance from SFC and Hymans Robertson LLP when setting assumptions and the actuarial valuation of the Strathclyde Pension
Fund liability is produced for the College by an actuary from Hymans Robertson LLP.
Depreciation rates are subjective but are in line with sector norms. Rates are approved by the Finance and Resources Committee
following advice from the Head of Estates. As a well maintained new college, impairment of fixed assets is not considered to be an
issue.

53

SOUTH LANARKSHIRE COLLEGE
Financial Statements for the year ended 31st July 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Board of Management of South Lanarkshire College is a body incorporated under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland)
Act 1992 sponsored by the Scottish Executive and subsequently the Scottish Further Education Funding Council until it merged to
form a part of the Scottish Funding Council (SFC). The Chair of the College's Board of Management is a Board Member of the
SFC, however he is not deemed to have control over the SFC.
The Scottish Executive is regarded as a related party. During the year South Lanarkshire College had various material
transactions with the Scottish Government and with other entities for which it is regarded as the sponsor department viz: SFC,
Students Awards Agency for Scotland, Scottish Enterprise, an extensive range of agencies funded by South Lanarkshire Council
(including Routes to Work South, Childcare Partnership, Regeneration Outcome Agreement, Adult Literacy and Numeracy
Initiatives) and a number of other colleges and higher education institutions.
The College’s Board of Management is drawn from local public and private sector organisations and as such it is inevitable that
transactions will take place with these organisations in which a member of the Board may have an interest. All transactions
involving organisations in which a member of the College's Board of Management may have a material interest are conducted at
arm’s length and in accordance with normal project and procurement procedures.
The College had transactions during the year with the following non-public bodies in which members of the Board of Management
have an interest and which in aggregate exceeded £5,000.

26.

Member
Mr C McDowall

Organisation
Anderson Strathern LLP

Position
Partner

Mr S Dillet

i dverde

Managing Director,
Scotland & North

Purchases
in the year
£8,094

Balance
at 31 July 2020
£5,694

£19,655

£1,629

IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Following reclassification, colleges receive what is termed a non-cash budget to cover depreciation. This non-cash budget cannot
be recognised under the FE/HE SORP and has not been reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
Had it been reflected, our results would have been as follows:
year ended
31st July 2020
£000
(Deficit) / Surplus from SOCIE before other gains / (losses)
Add non cash budget to cover depreciation
(Deficit) /Surplus on Central Government accounting basis for academic
year

year ended
31st July 2019
£000

(661)
197

219
197

(464)

416
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27.

SUMMARY OF BURSARY AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS
Funds received from Scottish Funding Council (SFC)

Grants received in period
B/fwd from previous year
Clawbacks re previous years
Virements to NCL
Internal virements
Disbursements to students
Funds from College
C/fwd in Creditors - Note 14
Analysis
Repayable to SFC
Retained for students

Bursaries
£000
2,682
48
(46)
(2,324)
360

360
360

Year ended 31st July 2020
FE
FE
HE
Childcare Hardship
EMA Childcare
£000
£000
£000
£000
284
905
104
259
(284)
(905)
(104)
(259)
-

-

-

-

-

SFC
Total
£000
4,234
48
(46)
(3,876)
360

360
360

Year ended
31st July 2019
SFC
Total
£000
4,275
111
(308)
(4,043)
14
49

49
49

Funds received from Student Awards Agency for Scotland (SAAS)

Grants received in period
B/fwd from previous year
Clawbacks re previous years
Funds from College
Virements
Disbursements to students
Interest received
C/fwd in Creditors - Note 14

Analysis
Repayable to SAAS
Retained for students

Year ended 31st July 2020
HE
Hardship
£000
166
19
(185)
-

SAAS
Total
£000
166
19
(185)
-

Year ended
31st July 2019
SAAS
Total
£000
157
16
(173)
-

-

These funds with the exception of FE and HE Childcare, represent grants made available which are available solely
for the students, with the College acting only as paying agent. The grants and related disbursements are therefore
excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
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Appendix 1
Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges 2019-20
1. It is the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that institutions1 comply with the
2019 Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher
Education (SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts2.
2. Institutions must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their
annual report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with
the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (RSB) (for
assigned colleges).
3. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are also required
to comply with the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2019-20 (FReM)
where applicable.
4. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are reminded
that they must send two copies of their annual report and accounts to the
Auditor General for Scotland by 31 December 2020.
5. The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive
officer/Executive Director and by the chair, or one other member of the
governing body.
6. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board should
reproduce this Direction as an appendix to the annual report and accounts.

Scottish Funding Council
17 July 2020

The term “institutions” includes colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board.
Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board’s accounts are prepared on a consolidated basis, incorporating
the results of City of Glasgow College, Glasgow Clyde College and Glasgow Kelvin College. New
College Lanarkshire’s accounts are also prepared on a consolidated basis, incorporating the results of
South Lanarkshire College.
1
2
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